THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GEORGETOWN COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Benjamin H. Culbertson, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case Number: 2014- 000621

Joseph N. Grate,

Appellant,

v.

Andrew J. Rodrigues,

Respondent.

RECEIVED
JUL 22 2014
SC Court of Appeals

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Joseph N. Grate, Pro Se
P.O. Box 1294
Pawley's Island, S.C. 29585
(843) 742-0696

I.

III. STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Is it not, at the very least, an error to have dismissed the case on grounds of one element, as possibly being barred by Statute of Limitation, from among the thirty five elements presented?
2. Should not the judge have addressed all allegations of defamation in the case?
3. Can a claim of absolute privilege survive where the defamatory statements are totally irrelevant to the issue being litigated?
4. Has not appellant's been deprived of due process?

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. This action was commenced on December 23, 2013. An amended complaint was filed February 10, 2014. Rule 9, SCRPC; Rule 15, SCRPC
2. The action comprised allegations of Defamation.
3. The defense to the action was a claim of Absolute Privilege and of one count being barred by Statute of Limitation.

4. A motion hearing was held on February 2, 2014; at which the case was continued to March 6, 2014, due to an Amended pleading having been filed.
5. On March 6, 2014, the Court dismissed the case on the bases of it being barred by Statute of Limitation.
6. The case did not go to trial; instead it was dismissed at a Motion Hearing on March 6, 2014, on basis of being barred by Statute of Limitation.
7. The amount involved on appeal is \$750,000.00.
8. Appellant is appealing the March 6, 2014, Judgment of the lower Court's dismissal of the case.
9. The date of service of the notice of appeal is March 19, 2014.

V. FACTS

The case was filed on December 23, 2013. (R. pp. 4-5 -pp. 10-16 -pp. 31-32). It comprised allegations of Defamation, arising from a previous Circuit Court Case, in 2013. During that case Defendant (Respondent herein) repeatedly gave erroneous, derogatory and, indeed, irrelevant verbal and written statements to the court. (R. p. 30 —p. 47, lines 7-13 -p.48, -p. 50 lines, 16-25 -pp. 51-80). The statements had no relevancy to the matter being tried. (R. p. 29 -p. 49, lines 11-25 —p.52, lines 7-8 —p.53, lines 2-3). Finally, at a motion hearing, the Judge stated that he had read the case file and that he could only go by what he had read and based his decision thereupon and dismissed the case. (R. p. 44 —p. 45, lines 15-16 —p.45, lines 10-13). Following dismissal of that case, Appellant herein, filed the Defamation action. The Defamation action was dismissed March 6, 2014

VI. ARGUMENT

1. IS IT NOT, AT THE VERY LEAST, AN ERROR TO HAVE DISMISSED THE CASE ON GROUNDS OF ONE ELEMENT, AMONG MANY, POSSIBLY BEING BARRED BY STATUTE OF LIMITATION?

In the case before the lower court, the complaint comprised thirty five counts of defamation; of which, the claim of Defendant having filed a trespassing claim against plaintiff comprised only one of the thirty five claims; therefore, thirty four were not addressed. (R. pp. 4-5, 10-16, 31-32. -p.10, item 3. -p.11, items 3-6, 9. -pp. 12-16. -p. 31 items 1-3)

The Statute of Limitation claim is questionable, given that the issue was raised in 2012 at Case No 2013-CP-22-00001 as well as raised on June 6, 2013. (R. p. 48 –p. 50, lines 16-25 –p. 51, lines 14-19 –p. 62, lines 7-8).

2. SHOULD NOT THE JUDGE HAVE ADDRESSED ALL ISSUES OF DEFAMATION PRESENTED IN THE CASE?

The claim of defendant having lied to the police, indicating that plaintiff was trespassing was raised in a lower court at Case No. 2013-CP-22-00001, filed January 3, 2012, and addressed at a motion hearing on June 6, 2013. (R. p. 48 –p.50, lines 16-25 –p. 51, lines 14-25). At which time defendant lied to the judge about having filed a trespassing complaint against plaintiff therein. (R. p.48. -p. 50, lines 16-20. –p. 51, lines 14-25. –pp. 27-28.

Therefore the date of the actual lie to the police should not be the governing date in determining the statute of limitation. In essence, the claim was made at the filing of the January 3, 2012, case. (R. p. 48 –p.50, lines 16-25 –p. 51, lines 14-25). The point of contention presently is that other issues were involved but that the judge totally disregarded

them and ruled on the matter of the trespass charge without permitting evidence to be presented. (R. p.48 -p. 61, lines 5-19). The case was dismissed, without consideration for due process as it related to the right to present evidence or to have a trial. Plaintiff therein should have been granted an opportunity to have been heard on the Defamation allegations. (R. p.48 -p. 61, lines 5-19). He should have been allowed to present evidence and to have a decision based upon all of the evidence presented. (R. p.4 item 3. -p. 18, paragraph 4. - pp. 27-29. p.49, lines 15-25. -p. 51, lines 14-25. -p.58, lines 1-8, 7-25. -p. 60 lines 16-20) ; Amendment 14, US Constitution.

For the other thirty four allegations, defendant claimed a privilege to lie to the court, with impunity. Appellant takes issue with that contention for it seems obnoxious to all ideas of law; as embodying any sense of reason or logic.

3. CAN A CLAIM OF ABSOLUTE PRIVILEGE SURVIVE WHERE THE DEFAMATORY STATEMENTS ARE TOTALLY IRRELEVANT TO THE ISSUE BEING LITIGATED?

After having made numerous defamatory statements, Defendant, at the lower court, persistently claimed Absolute Privilege. Is it permissible for anyone to, wholesale and with impunity, lie to the court for the sole purpose of defeating the charges by way of providing irrelevant and erroneous information about one's opponent? (R. -pp. 12-16. p.49, lines 15-25. R. p. 30,-pp. 55 – 80. -p. 52, lines 7-8. -p. 53, lines 2-4, 19-20)

To avail oneself of this privilege, what are the qualifications? Does one need to admit to lies? Is it a special privilege granting Judges and Attorneys a free pass to lie at will? How does Respondent qualify for that Privilege? Are the lies exempted from law as it pertains to perjury? Holtzscheiter v. Thompson Newspaper, Inc.

4. HAS NOT APPELLANT BEEN DEPRIVED OF DUE PROCESS?

Plaintiff was not permitted an opportunity to present the case, to present evidence or to conduct cross examination. The case was not decided based exclusively on the evidence. Evidently, the tribunal was not unbiased. Amendment 14, US Constitution