THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In the Court of Appeals

APPEALS FROM GEORGETOWN COUNTY

Court of Common Pleas

Benjamin H. Culbertson, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case Number: 2014-000621

Joseph N. Grate,

Appellant

V.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Did the Trial Court err in the granting of the motion to dismiss the complaint because Appellant failed to set forth a statement of facts in his complaint to meet the requirements rule 8(a)(2) SCRPC for an action for defamation
2. Did the Trial Court err in granting the motion to dismiss Item 3 in Appellant's complaint and granting motion to dismiss Items 10A-10R and Items 11-26 in his amended complaint because all of the alleged defamatory statements, which are the basis of his cause of action were made in a judicial proceeding in Case No. 2013-CP-22-0001; they have absolute privilege and cannot be the basis for an action in defamation, and, therefore, Respondents' motion to dismiss the complaint should be granted?
3. Did the Trial Court err in granting the motion to dismiss the amended complaint because the alleged defamatory statement in Item 9 of appellants amended complaint occurred on September 1, 2011, and Appellant did not file an action until December 23, 2013, two years and five months after the event occurred and the two year statute of limitations set forth in Rule 15-3-550 SCRPC barred the action, and, therefore, Respondents' motion to dismiss the amended complaint should be granted?
4. Did the trial court err in granting the motion to dismiss the complaint because all of the alleged defamatory statements set forth in Items 10a-10r and Items 11-26, which are the basis of his cause of action, except for item 9, were made in a judicial proceeding in Case No. 2013-CP-22-0001; they have absolute privilege and cannot be the basis for an action in defamation, and, therefore, Respondent's motion to dismiss the amended complaint should be granted?

5. Did the Trial Court err in the granting of the motion to dismiss the complaint and motion to dismiss the amended complaint because Appellant had relied solely upon his pleadings, did not file any counter affidavits or motions in opposition to the Respondent's motion to dismiss the complaint and motion to dismiss the amended complaint, and otherwise failed to demonstrate that there was a genuine issue to any material fact contained in Respondent's motions?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. On December 23, 2013, Plaintiff filed his Complaint for Defamation. He alleges the defamation occurred in the legal proceedings in Case No. 2013-CP-22-0001, an action for ejectment in which the trial court denied Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment at the motion hearing and dismissed the case with prejudice at the trial.
2. On January 9, 2014, Defendant filed his Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Complaint of defamation, on the grounds that Plaintiff failed to meet the requirements set forth in Rule 12(b)(6) SCRPC and that the alleged defamation statement had absolute privilege having been made in a judicial proceeding, Case No. 2013-CP-22-0001.
3. On January 17, 2014, Defendant filed his Answer to Plaintiff's Complaint for Defamation.
4. On February 7, 2014, Plaintiff filed objections to Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Complaint for Defamation; citing Rule 9 (h) SCRPC Pleading Special Matters—Libel and Slander and Rule 15 (a) SCRPC— Amended and Supplemental Pleadings, and pleading ignorance to the role of absolute privilege in legal proceedings..
5. On February 10, 2014, Plaintiff filed an Amended Complaint, in which he modified Item 3 of his original complaint by adding "**2011**" to form the phrase "That in **2011** and 2013". He added Item 9 containing what he alleged to be a defamatory statement. He also added Items 10A through 10R each containing what he alleged to be defamatory oral statements and Items 11 through 26 each containing what he alleged to be defamatory written statements, all of which, except Item 9, were made in the legal proceedings in Case No. 2013-CP-22-0001, Item 9 was made on September 1, 2011.
6. On February 11, 2014, the hearing of Defendant's Motion to Dismiss commenced but was curtailed and postponed, because Plaintiff had on the day before filed an Amended Complaint. The Judge cancelled the hearing until further notice.
7. On February 18, 2014, Defendant filed a Notice of Motion and a Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint, on the basis that Item 9 was barred by the statute-of-limitations and those Items 10A through 10R and Items 11 through 26 had absolute privilege and, therefore, could not be the basis for an action for defamation.
8. On February 20, 2014, Defendant filed an Amended Notice of Motion and a Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint, in order to correct the date on which Item 9 actually occurred.

9. On February 20, 2014, the court by mail, dated February 20, 2014, advised the Parties that the hearing was rescheduled for March 6, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. to hear Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint.
10. On March 4, 2014, Plaintiff filed "Affidavit of Joseph N. Grate In Support of Objection To (all-to date) Defendants Dismissal Notices. Defendant did not receive Plaintiff affidavit until March 7, 2014.
11. On March 6, 2014, the rescheduled hearing of Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint was held, before Judge Culbertson.
12. On March 12, 2014, Defendant received the Judgment in Civil Case Number 2013-CP-22- 01258, which was an action for defamation. The case was heard by Judge Culbertson, who:
"Ordered and Adjudged:
Statement of Judgment by the Court:
13. "Motion to Dismiss/Rodrigues- Granted."
14. "Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint/Rodrigues- Granted."
15. "This order ends ... the Case."
16. Additional information: "Actions barred by the Statute of Limitations."
17. Judge Culbertson, after reviewing the case files and hearing the Defendant's and the Plaintiff's arguments at the hearing, orally dismissed the Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint and said he agreed with Mr. Rodrigues. He then "Ordered and Adjudged: the "Motion to Dismiss/Rodrigues- Granted" and the "Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint/Rodrigues- Granted," which action dismissed the Plaintiff's Complaint and Amended Complaint and ended the case. Judge Culbertson did so, on the basis of the three grounds in the argument presented by the Defendant.

FACTS

On December 23, 2013 Appellant filed a defamation action in Case No. 2013-CP-22-01258. In his allegation Appellant made the following allegations:

3. That in 2013, Defendant, **maliciously** and **relentlessly** , made verbal and written Defamatory Public Statements about Plaintiff, with the obvious primary intent of Defaming his character and his Personal and Professional Reputation.
4. That defendant's action is injurious to Plaintiff Professionally, as well as to his Character and to his Reputation.
5. That the Defamation is Manifestly Actionable Per Se.
6. That the Defamation is Defamatory Per Se."

In his third item for prayer for relief Appellant requested "For the Purging of all defamatory material contained at **2013-CP-22-0001**; which are substantively at issue in this case."

On January 9, 2014, Respondent filed a Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Complaint on two grounds. The pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) on the grounds that Plaintiff failed "to plead sufficient facts to show the elements required to support a cause of action." In addition Respondent confirmed that the alleged defamatory statements in Items 3, 4, 5, and 6 were made in a judicial proceeding, and as such have absolute privilege and, therefore, could not be the subject of a defamation action.

On January 17, 2014, Respondent filed an Answer to Appellants Complaint, in which he requested the court to dismiss the Complaint for the same reasons set forth in his Motion to Dismiss.

On February 7, 2014, Appellant filed an Objection to Defendant's Motion to Dismiss for three reasons. In doing so, for the first two reasons he merely cited the titles of two rules of the SCRCP; the first was Rule 9(h) Pleading Special Matters—Libel and Slander and the second was Rule 15(a) Amended and Supplemental Pleadings, without setting forth their application to the case. For the third reason Plaintiff merely stated his ignorance of the application of absolute privilege in Judicial Proceedings.

On February 10, 2014, Plaintiff had filed an Amended Complaint, in which he modified Item 3 of his original complaint by adding "**2011**" to form the phrase "That in **2011** and 2013". He added Item 9 containing what he alleged to be defamatory a statement. He also added Items 10A through 10R each containing what he alleged to be defamatory oral statements and Items 11 through 26 each containing what he alleged to be defamatory written statements All of the statements except for that in item 9 were made during the course of legal proceedings in Case No, 2013-CP-22-0001 and had absolute privilege. Item 9 was made on September 1, 2011, more than two years and four months before the Amended Complaint was filed.

On February 11, 2014 the motion hearing was scheduled, but on the day before the hearing on February 10, 2014 the Plaintiff filed his Amended Complaint, which caused the trial Judge to postpone the hearing.

On February 18, 2014, Defendant filed a Notice of Motion and a Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint for defamation on the grounds that (1) the alleged defamatory statement in Item 9 of his allegations was barred by Rule 15-3-550 SCRCP that set forth the two year Statute-of-Limitations for libel and slander and (2) that) the alleged defamatory statements in Item 10A through 10R and Items 11 through 26 were made during court proceedings and had absolute privilege and, therefore, could not be used as the basis for an action for defamation.

On February 20, 2014, Defendant filed an Amended Notice of Motion and a Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint. He did so because he had obtained a Sheriff's Department Incident Report relating to Item 9 of Plaintiff's Amended Complaint confirming the actual date

of the statement as "9/1/11" contained therein. Which date confirmed that the statement was barred by Rule 15-3-550 SCRPC that set forth the two year Statute-of-Limitations for libel and slander.

The case was rescheduled to March 6, 2014 and heard on that day.

On March 4, 2014, Plaintiff filed "Affidavit of Joseph N. Grate In Support of Objection To (all-to date) Defendants Dismissal Notices. Defendant did not receive Plaintiff affidavit until March 7, 2014.

On March 6, 2014, the rescheduled hearing of Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint was held, before Judge Culbertson. Judge Culbertson, after reviewing the case files and hearing the Defendant's and the Plaintiff's arguments, ruled "I'm going to grant the motion to dismiss. I agree with Mr. Rodrigues."

On March 12, 2014, Defendant received the Judgment in the case, in which Judge Culbertson "Ordered and Adjudged: Statement of Judgment by the Court: "Motion to Dismiss/Rodrigues- Granted." and "Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint/Rodrigues- Granted." And that "This order ends ... the Case. Additional information: "Actions barred by the Statute of Limitations."

Judge Culbertson dismissed the Plaintiff's Complaint and Amended Complaint on the arguments set forth in Defendant's Motion to Dismiss and his Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint and the arguments the Defendant presented at the hearing.

ARGUMENT

1. BECAUSE APPELLANT FAILED TO SET FORTH A STATEMENT OF FACTS IN HIS COMPLAINT TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULES 8(A)(2) and 12(b)(6) OF THE SCRPC FOR AN ACTION FOR DEFAMATION IN HIS COMPLAINT, RESPONDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS THE COMPLAINT SHOULD BE GRANTED.

Defendant in his Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Complaint cited Rules 8(a)(2) and 12(b)(6) of the SCRPC as the first of the two basis for his Motion to Dismiss. Those two rules require that In order to state a cause of action for defamation—libel or slander—the Plaintiff must plead sufficient facts to show the elements required to support a cause of action, failure to do so will entitle a defendant to a dismissal of the case. The Plaintiff in the allegations in the pleading in his complaint has failed to set forth any facts to support his cause of action. Plaintiff has failed to provide evidence regarding the following required elements of defamation: (1) any facts regarding the particular words that he alleged defendant made that were defamatory with

respect to him and that those words were not privileged. (2) any facts regarding the publication of those alleged defamatory statements and that they were not privileged,. (3) any facts that those alleged defamatory statements were false and (4) any facts that those alleged defamatory statements injured Plaintiff's personal and professional reputation. Plaintiff in his pleading in the complaint did not provide any facts to show the elements required to support a cause of action for defamation. As a consequence, the Trial Judge properly granted the Respondent's Motion to Dismiss Appellant's complaint.

Defendant in his Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Complaint cited the third item of Plaintiff's Prayer for relief as the second of the two basis for his Motion to Dismiss. Plaintiff in the third prayer in his pleadings in his Complaint and Amended Complaint insufficiently stated that "That in 2013, Defendant **maliciously** and **relentlessly**, made verbal and written Defamatory Public Statements about Plaintiff, with the intent of Defaming his Character, and his Personal and Professional Reputation. " However, Plaintiff in the third item in his prayer for relief made a request "For the Purging of all defamatory material contained at: 2013-CP-22-0001; which are substantively at issue in this case." From the wording of the Plaintiff's prayer for relief, it is clear that the references in Plaintiff allegations in Items 3, 4, 5, and 6 regarding defamatory statements allegedly made by the Defendant were made in a judicial proceeding and would, if made, have had absolute privilege. Defendant cited these facts as one of the two basis for his Motion to Dismiss. Case No. 2013-CP-22-0001 was an action for eviction that Plaintiff filed against the Defendant, which was "dismissed with prejudice" at the hearing before the trial began. On the basis of Plaintiff failure to meet the requirements of Rules 8(a)(2) and 12(b)(6) SCRCF, and the fact that all of the defamatory statements had absolute privilege, the Trial Judge properly granted the Respondent's Motion to Dismiss Appellant's complain

2. BECAUSE APPELLANT IN ITEM 3 OF HIS PRAYER FOR RELIEF IN HIS COMPLAINT AND ITEMS 10A-10R AND ITEMS 11-26 IN HIS AMENDED COMPLAINT ADMITTED THAT ALL OF THE ALLEGED DEFAMATORY STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE THE BASIS OF HIS CAUSE OF ACTION WERE MADE IN A JUDICIAL PROCEEDING IN CASE NO. 2013-CP-22-0001; THOSE STATEMENTS HAVE ABSOLUTE PRIVILEGE AND CANNOT BE THE BASIS FOR AN ACTION IN DEFAMATION, AND RESPONDANT'S, MOTION TO DISMISS THE COMPLAINT SHOULD BE GRANTED.

With respect to Plaintiff's concern about "an important issue of consideration is whether a special provision exists, which allow for blatant malicious Defamation, with impunity." In Pond Place Partners, Inc. v. Poole, 567 S.E. 881 (S.C. App. 2002), 351 S.C. 1, the court stated that "South Carolina has long recognized that relevant pleadings, even if defamatory are absolutely privileged. *McKesson & Robbins v. Newsome*, 206 S.C. 269, 33S.E. 2d 585 (1945); *Texas Co. v. C.W. Brewer & Co.*, 180 S.C. 325, 185 S.E. 623 (1936); *Rodgers v. Wise*.193 S.C. 5, 7 S.E. 2d 517 (1940); *Sanders v. Rollison*, 33 S.C. Law (2 Strob.) 447 (1848) ... ("It is well established that

statements written or oral made by judges, attorneys, witnesses, parties or jurors in the course of a judicial proceedings, which have some relation thereto, are absolutely privileged from libel or defamation actions, even if the statements are made with malice.”); *Kropp v. Prather*, 526 S.W. 2d (Tex. Civ. App. 1975) (“Any communication, oral or written uttered [351 S.C. 24] or published in the due course of a judicial proceeding is absolutely privileged and cannot form the basis for a cause of action in libel or slander.”)

With respect to Item 3 of Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendant’s Dismissal Motion, Plaintiff states in part as follows: “Finally, with respect to Absolute Privilege or immunity from so many lies presented to any court, Plaintiff pleads total ignorance; however, an important issue of consideration is whether a special provision exists, which allow for blatant malicious Defamation, with impunity.” That statement confirms the fact that Items 3, 4, 5, and 6 referring to defamation in his allegations and Item 3 of his prayer in both his original complaint and amended complaints in this case—2013-CP-22-01258—all relate to the Court proceedings in case no. 2012-CP-22-00001.” Plaintiff in the third item in his prayer for relief made a request “For the Purging of all defamatory material contained at: 2013-CP-22-00001; which are **substantively** at issue in this case.” (Emphasis added.) From the wording of the Plaintiff’s prayer for relief, it is clear that the references in Plaintiff allegations in Items 3, 4, 5, and 6 regarding defamatory statement allegedly made by the Defendant were all made in a judicial proceeding and would, if made, have had absolute privilege. Case No. 2013-CP-22-00001 was an action for eviction that Plaintiff filed against the Defendant, which was “dismissed with prejudice” at the hearing before the trial began. ”

Plaintiff in his Amended Complaint made the two following admissions: (1) **“Defendant made verbal statements, of which every assertion was totally untrue, to the Georgetown Circuit Court, to wit:”** Items 10(A) through 10(R) of plaintiff’s amended complaint. (2) **“That Defendant submitted documents, wherein every assertion against Plaintiff are totally untrue to the Georgetown Circuit Court, to wit:”** Items 11 through 26 of plaintiff’s amended complaint.

Plaintiff in his amended complaint admits that Items 10(A) through 10(R) were oral statements made by the Defendant during court proceeding and admitted that Items 11 through 26 were written documents submitted by the Defendant during court proceeding. Plaintiff, however falsely alleged “every assertion was totally untrue.” However, Defendant swears that every one of those statements is true. The issue, herein, is not whether those assertions that occurred in the course of a judicial proceeding are untrue or true, but whether they are “absolutely privileged and cannot form the basis for a cause of action in libel or slander.” Plaintiff in his pleading in the Amended Complaint did not provide any facts to show that these alleged defamatory statements were not relevant to the action for Ejectment in Case No. 2013 –CP-22-0001. Since all of the defamatory statements—except for Item 9—had absolute privilege and, therefore could not be the basis for a cause of action in defamation and Item 9 was barred by

the two year statute-of-limitations set forth in Rule 15-3-550 SCRPC, therefore, they could not be the basis of an action in defamation. As a consequence, the Trial Judge properly granted Respondent's Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint.

3. BECAUSE THE ALLEGED DEFAMATORY STATEMENT IN ITEM 9 OF APPELLANTS AMENDED COMPLAINT OCCURRED ON SEPTEMBER 1, 2011, AND APPELLANT DID NOT FILE AN ACTION UNTIL DECEMBER 23, 2013, TWO YEARS AND FIVE MONTHS AFTER THE EVENT OCCURRED AND THE TWO YEAR STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS BARRED THE ACTION, RESPONDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS THE AMENDED COMPLAINT SHOULD BE GRANTED.

Rule 15-3-550 SCRPC. Regarding statute of limitations provides that, "Within two years: (1) an action for, libel, slander, or false imprisonment; and (2) an action upon a statute for forfeiture or penalty to the state." Two year statute of limitations applies to the filing of an action for defamation involving libel or slander. Rule 15-3-550 SCRPC requires that such actions be filed within two years from the day the defamatory act occurred.

With respect to Item 9 of Plaintiff's Amended Complaint, Plaintiff did not specifically mention the time that the event occurred or provide any facts to determine the time. Item 9 of Plaintiff's Amended Complaint reads as follows: "***That That Defendant made verbal statement to the Georgetown Sherrif Department, accusing Plaintiff here-in of trespassing.***" It is noteworthy; however, that Item 9 is the only item alleging defamation in Plaintiff's amended complaint that did not occur within the Georgetown County Court's proceedings in the year 2013, as did Items 10(A) through 10(R) and Items 11 through 26 of Plaintiff's Amended Complaint. Therefore, it is reasonable to conclude that the statement contained in Item 9 occurred in the year 2011.

Defendant after the Motion hearing on February 11, 2014, when he and the Trial Judge were first made aware that Plaintiff had filed his Amended Complaint on February 10, 2011, contacted the Sheriff's Office. Defendant did so, in order to determine whether the deputy sheriffs who were involved in the incident had filed a report, and found out that an incident report had been filed. (A copy of which is attached.) That incident report indicated that the event stated in Item 9 had not occurred "on or about August 16, 2011," as set forth in Defendant's Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint but it had actually occurred on September 1, 2011.

The original Complaint, which did not contain Item 9 of the Amended Complaint, was filed on December 23, 2013, some four months after the statute-of-limitation had elapsed. The Amended Complaint, which contains Item 9 was filed on February 10, 2014, some six months after the statute of limitation elapsed. The statement contained in Item 9 of the Amended

Complaint having been filed after the statute-of-limitation for defamation had elapsed, could not be the subject of a court action for defamation.

Since all of the defamatory statements—except for Item 9—had absolute privilege and, therefore could not be the basis for a cause of action in defamation and Item 9 was barred by the two year statute-of-limitations set forth in Rule 15-3-550 SCRCP, therefore, they could not be the basis of an action in defamation. As a consequence, the Trial Judge properly granted Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint.

4. BECAUSE APPELLANT RELIED SOLEY UPON HIS PLEADINGS, DID NOT FILE ANY COUNTER AFFIDAVITS OR MOTIONS IN OPPOSITION TO THE RESPONDENT’S MOTION TO DISMISS THE COMPLAINT OR MOTION TO DISMISS THE AMENDED COMPLAINT AND OTHERWISE FAILED TO DEMONSTRATE THAT THERE WAS A GENUINE ISSUE TO ANY MATERIAL FACT CONTAINED IN RESPONDANT’S MOTIONS, THEREFORE, RESPONDANT’S MOTION TO DISMISS THE COMPLAINT AND MOTION TO DISMISS THE AMENDED COMPLAINT SHOULD BE GRANTED.

Plaintiff did not offer any responses to Defendants Motion to Dismiss or Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint that set forth any specific facts that showed a genuine issue for trial. By not filing any pleadings, depositions, answer to interrogatories, and admission on file, together with affidavits and thereby, relied solely on the pleadings in his Complaint and/or his Amended Complaint. Plaintiff by his own failure to do so did not demonstrate that there was genuine issue for trial and as a result, he denied his own self the right to have a trial. In effect, the Trial Court did not deny the Plaintiff due process, instead he denied himself of due process.